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STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- Did the Circuit Court err in issuing summary judgment ﬁndmg that

S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11- 780 is. mapphcable to this case?

Even if the Court of Appeals determines that the Circuit Court's

interpretation is permissible, are the Defendants "still liable

through actual and constructive knowledge of the existence of
historical and archaeological resources on the Plaintiffs’
properties? '

Did the Circuit Court err in issuing summary judgment that no
preservation or conservation authorities had designated the bridge
abutments on Plaintiffs’ properties as archaeologlcal resource(s) or
archaeologlcal structure(s)?

Did the’ Clrcult Court err in concluding. that deSignation on the
National Register of Historic Places was a requirement for S.C. Code

~ Ann. § 16- 11 780 to be apphcable to this case?

Is the Clrcult Court S mlsstatement of the law grounds for reversal"

Did the Circuit Court err in issuing Summary judgment that the
Defendants NAPM and the City of Columbia were immune from
liability for the destruction of archaeological resources because of
the “utility worker exception” in S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 (K)(3)?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This case is an appeal of an Order of the Circuit Court granting surmnary

judgment to the Defendants NAPM and the'City of Columbia regarding the applicability

of S.C. Codé Ann. § 16-1 1-780. The matter deals with the entry by the Defendants on

lands of the Plaintiffs and the excavation and the destruction of archaeological resources

that were outside of an easement that had been granted to the Defendant C1ty The

Plaintiffs ﬁled suit against the Defendants on grounds of disturbance and “destructlon of

archaeologlcal structures ‘nuisance, trespass; taklng, neghgence and neghgence per se.

ThlS appeal addresses only the claim regardlng the private nght of action that is allowed

pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §16-11-780 (I). -



Plamtiffs filed their Complamt on September 11 2015 an Amended Complamt
on December 16, 2015 and a Second Amended Complamt on January 13, 2016. The.
Plaintiffs are the owners of real property on Castle Road Piamtlffs Modesta and Dav1d’
Brinkman own the property and reside at 154 Castle Road; Plaintiff James Coleman
~owns the property and resides at 150 Castle Road; Plaintiffs Carl and Karen Foster own
the property and reside at 142 Castle Road and Plaintiff Robert Collins owns the real |
property located at 156 Castle 'Roa_d, which is undeveloped, but does not reside there. .
~ The Defendants that remain in the case are the City ofl Columbia (“the City”) which
holds a permanent easement across the. Pl'aintiffs’:land for the pnrpoSe of lmaintaining a
sewer line, ‘I;ayne Inliner (“isayne”_),‘a company that was awarded a contract by the City
to place a‘ _iining in its sewer pipes, and North Ameﬂca Pipeline Management
(“NAPM”), is a.company hired by Layne to perform land clearing and grading along the

easement in preparation for Layne’s work.

Both.parties filed"numerous motions 'dnring the pendency of: the case. Most
notably, the Defendant Weston Aa’nd Sampson filed a-Motion for Summary Judgment on
October 30, 2017 that was granted in part dismissing several Weston and Sampson
corporate defendants. |

The\ Plaintiffs " ﬁied a Motion forFSummary iud‘gment on thetrespass .cause of
action on January 8; 201 .8. The Motion was denied on grounds_ that there remained issues
of fact regarding the presence of some of the Defendants outside of the easement, but the

- (

Court ruled that any temporary construction easement that may have existed across the

Plaintiffs’ property_ expired when the sewer line that is the subject'of this case was built



in the 1980s. The Court conﬁrmed thata permanent easement of fifteen (15) Zfleet exists
across the Plaintiffs’ propertles
The Defendant Layne Inliner filed a Motlon for Summary Judgment allegmg
multiple grounds, which was demed, and parttal sumrnary Judgment was granted to the
Defendant Weston and 'Sampson Engineers, Inc. The Plaintiffs have since settled with-
Weston and ‘Sampso'n Engineers, Inc.’ | |
On October 20, 2017, the'_City of ‘_Colur_nbia» filed a Motion for Summary
' Judgment. On May 23, 20'17, the Court granted bparti‘al summary judgment dismissing
the Plaintiff Pamela Collins from the action, because she was not a record owner of real
'property with her husband Robert Collins. Additionally, relying wholly on the Order of
| Judge Cooper (the other" Order that is the subject of this appeal) which dismissed clairns
against NAPM under S.‘C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780; Judge Newman also dismissed the
claims agatnst the City of Columbia“pvursuant to .S.C. Code Ann. §' 16-11-780. hThis, '
~ appeal addresses both'Judge Cooper’s and Judge Newrnan’s dismissal of the S.C. Code
Ann. § 16-11-780 claims that were brought by the Plaintiffs‘against NAPM and the City

of Columbia, respectiveiy: |

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

'In the 17905,~a“ French engineer named John Compty built two hridg_es that were
the first to cross the Broad River, thtis ‘connecting Columbia‘with the frontier to the
north and west. The first bndge was built on the lands now owned by the Plaintiff James
'_ Coleman. A ﬂood washed that brldge away, and a few years later, a second bridge was
- constructed on the lands now owned by the Plamtlffs David and Modesta Brinkman.

After that brldge was destroyed in another flood, Mr. Compty operated a ferry service



that connected Columbia with the frontier to-the west. (R. p. 73, R. p. 411:75, lines 14-

24, R. 535:94-96, lines 24-25, 1-25, 1-14) =

In 1985 t&ough 1987, the City of Columbia acquiréd easements'vélong the Broad - ‘
River and cohstrﬁcted a sewer l_ihé across lénds that were later acquired by the Plaintiffs. |
In approximateiy .2004, Plaintiff David Brinkman determined that a stone structure c;n
hi‘s property’ was | man—rgiéc‘le.'.At ﬁrsf, he believed thét iheu structure was part of an old -
ferry .cros—sing; In 2007, the SoUth Caroliné-State Archaeologist, Dr. Jonathan Leader,
identified the structure as a bridge abutment. (R. p. 64, R. p. 74, lines 5-21, R. p.
442:2.00—2.01,:1_ines 13-25, 1-20, R. p. 406:56;57, lir_les 5-25, l'-'S., R. p. 430:153, lines .4-'
24, R. pp. 559-560, R. p. 562-582) Plaintiff David Brinkman conducted historical
research, and he initially hypothesized that th_e _abuuﬁent Was related to a bridge that
Gene;ral Sherman used to enter Columbié fdr the purpose of occupying and. burning tfle
- City in February 1865. (R. p. 559;560, R.' p. 43(5:151'-1_52, lines 15-25, 1-2) In 2007, Mr.
Brinkr.nanﬂcbntacted the South Caroling Depaﬁment of ‘Aréhivés and Hiétory for the
" purpose of having the bridgé abﬁtments nominated for listing on the NationalvRegister of
Historic Plac;es (Nationa}l Register). er. Brinkman receivg:d a letter frorﬁ Mr. Andrew .
| W. Chéndler in February 2008 thaf referred to Mr. Briﬁkman’é Worlsaé.‘l‘impres'sive,” '
but déclined to include the 'site‘ for nomination to the National Regiéter'beg:ause further
evaluation was necessary. (R.'pp.'58-59, R p. 439:18.6—187,- lines 18-25, ij16) At this
time,. Mr. .Brinkman belie;/ed that.his and Dr. Cole\rnah;s pfoperty' contained the remains - -

of the Sherman Bridge.

Later in 2008, Mr. Brinkman determined that the Shermah Bridge ‘was locatedv

elsewhere, and this finding was subséquently confirmed by the State Archaeologist. (R.



p. 535:94-96 lines 24-25 1-25V- 1-14) Thls story was.feat.ured' on the PBS show History
Detectrves (R p. 429:148, lmes 1-25) Mr Brmkman subsequently 1dent1ﬁed the
abutments on h1s ‘and- Appellant Coleman S property as the John Compty brldge '
‘abutments that date;from much earlierin the 1790s. The State Archaeologist concurred

with Mr. Brinkman’s :ﬁ_n:dings. R.p. 442:200-201, lines 13_—255 1-15)

As part of a "sewer maintenance plan to evaluate and upgrade the City’s sewer
pipes, the. City'of Colurn‘bia developed a “2020 .Plan.” The 2020 Plan was in part the
- result of the United States Environmental_Protection Agency’s oversight of discharge of |

effluent from munlcipal -sewer systerns. (R. pp. l6_5-180)' In 2014, the City entered into a
contract: \%vith the Defendant LaYne Inliner to'place a synthetic linerl intol certain sewer -
pipes that were owned by the City. Layne Inliner then hired the Defendant North |
. Merican Pipeline Management (N APM) tor the pur'pose of land clearing in preparation

for this maintenance work.

In'a September 20l4 meeting, each of the Defendants dis_cussed building an
access road across the Plaintiffs’ properties for the purpose of the aforementioned sewer
maintenance project. (R p 70) The memorandum memorlallzmg the meetmg states that
the road was intended to be constructed w1th1n the fifteen (15) foot permanent easement
that ex1sted across the Plaintiffs’ propertles Defendant Layne Inliner was on record as
recommendlng that th1s access road be constructed and a budget was developed that
included extra funds for the removal of rock. (R. pp. 71-72)There is a dlspute of fact as
to Whether the r__oad and maintenance work was actually needed, as discovery produced

by the Defendants stated that the work .was not needed in the vicinity of Plaintiffs™



property, but it was unspent money in. the budget that could be applied toward this work.

(R. pp. 231-233)

On or about February 5, 2015 the Defendants w1thout any notice whatsoever to

the Plaintiffs, began land clearmg and excavation activmes in their backyards
Defendant. NAPM was identified as the operator of earth movmg equipment that cut a
road into the steep bank on the Plaintiffs’ properties. The clearing and excavation
exceeded the existing fifteen-foot perman_ent_ easement, and extended to between thirty
to as much as fifty fe‘et‘ in width. (R. pp- 75-79, see p. 79, lines 3-6, R. p. 242, R pp-
347- 348 11nes 25, 1-25) It is.undisputed that the two Compty Bridge abutments were.
located outside of the fifteen-foot easement. (R. p. 407 61-62, hnes 2225, 1, R p- 244)
At the_ time that thls,wo,rk was ongomg, personnel from the Defendant C1ty were plainly
~ aware that the werk exceeded the dimensiens of the easeinent. -(R..pp. 79-82, lines 3-6,
21-23, 1-25, 1-7) While the land disturhanee was ongoing, an NAPM official indicated
to one of the Plaintiffs that he was not sure‘ of the width of the easement. (R. S. p. 1)
NAPM representatives were present duiiné .the September 2014 meeting in whieh the
fifteen (15) foot width was discussed and memorial.ized in a construction meme. R.p. -

70)

-The Plaintift James Coleman pointed out thebridge'abutment and advised the |
NAPM crew that the bridge abutment ori his vprope,r‘ty ‘was a hiétoric structlire that shouid
* be avoided. (R. p. 574, R. pp. 85-86) Nev'ertheless, when he fetdrned to his property, the
bridge ahutrnent had been destroyed despite hlS warning. Prior to its de'structio—n, NAPM
was. nro'vided speeii'ic notice that the abutrhent on Dr. Coleman’s property was.historical |

in nature. (R. p. 574, R. p. 349, lines 18-22) Earth moving equipment that was operated



by the Defendant NAPM knocked over and destroyed both of the Compty Bridge
Abutments These structures were outside of the permanent easement (R. p. 244, R. p.
407:61-62, lines 22- 25, 1) Based upon citizen complarnts the work was stopped by the

City on February 12, 2015.

| It is undisputed' that neither the D-efendant City of Columbia nor the other
Defendants obtained any permits for the work that was undertaken. The remams of the
Compty Abutment were dep051ted in Junsdlctlonal wetlands that are regulated by the
United States Army Corps of Engineers, and The Corps found that a violation of Section
404 of the .Clean Water'Act,l33 U.S.C. §‘134A4, had"occurred.- (R. pp. 237, 580-583).It is
further undisputed that none of the 'De.fendants conducted a cultural or historical

resources survey prior to the commencement of their work on the Plaintiffs’ property.

* Pursuant to his duties as South VCFavroIina State Archaeologist, Dr. Jonathan
Leader conducted a damage assessment of the archaeological resources on the property
of the Brinkman and Colle'man‘ Plaintiffs. Dr. Leader documented that the Plaintiffs’
properties were a “multi-cultural” site and that archaeological resources including the
Compty Bridge Abutments were disturbed at the site, and he computed the cost of B

rehabilitating and repairing the Compty Abutrnents.‘ (R. pp. 562-574)

STANDARD OF REVIEW

"An appellate court reviews the granting of summary judgment under the same
standard applied by the trial court pursuant to Rule 56 SCRCP." Moriarty v. Garden
Sanctuary Church of God, 341 S C. 320, 327, 534 SE2d 672 675 (2000) holdzng
modified on other grounds by State v. Cherry, 361 S'C.' 588, 606 S.E.2d 475 (2004),

Wachovia Bank, N.iA._ v. Coffey, 404 SC 421, 425, 746 S.E.2d 35, 37 (2013). Rule 56



provides that the trial court shall grant summary Judgment. 1f "there is no genuine issue
as to any materlal fact and that the moving party is entltled toa Judgment as a.matter of
law." Rule 56(c) S'CRCP. "In determining w‘hether any triable issue of fact exists the
evidence and all 1nferences whrch can reasonably be drawn therefrom must be viewed in
- the light most favorable to the nonmovmg party.’ " Quail Hill, LLC V. Cnty of chhland
387 S.C. 223, 235, 692 S.E.2d 499, 505 (2010) (mternal quotation marks omitted). .'
" "Summary judgment is ndt appropriate when ﬁuther inquiry. into the facts of the case is /
desirable to clarify the application of the law." Carolina C.hlorid.e,' Ine. v. S.C. Dept. of
Transportation, 391 S.C. 429, 434, 706 S.E. 2d 501, 504 (2011). "Summary judgment
shou]d not be granted e:ven_.v'uhen there is:n’ol dispute as to evidentiary faets if there is
dispute as to the conelusion to be drawn from tho.‘se facts." Id "In deterrnining whether
any triable issues "_of fact exist, the court must view the e\'-/i.denee and all 'reasonable
Ain»ferences that may be drawn frnm ‘the evidence in the light most favorable to the non-
moving party." Id.  McAlhany '§'.'Carzer,'415 S.C. 54 62-63, 781 S.E. 2d 105 (Ct.App.
2615) | | |
I ARGUMENTS
_‘ L THE COURT WAS IN ERROR IN ITS STATUTORY

INTERPRETATION THAT S.C. CODE Ann. § 16-11-780(C) WAS
INAPPLICABLE IN THIS CASE.

" A. The Circuit Court failed to properly vapply the rules of statutory.
construction. , :

The Orders that granted NAPM and the C1ty Summary Judgment mcorrectly‘
applied the adve_rns w111fully-, knowingly- or m_ahclously to sectlons of the statute
beyond the verb modified by these adverbs. S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780(c) reads as

follows: .



It is unlawful for a person to willfully, knowingly, or maliciously
enter upon the lands of another or the posted lands of the State
and disturb or, excavate a prehistoric or historic site for the
| ‘purpose of "discovering, uncovering, moving, removing, or
~ attempting to remove an archaeological resource. Each unlawful
entry and act of disturbance or excavation of a prehistoric or
historic site constitutes a separate and distinct offense.

-The Court made a fundamental error in finding that-a person must have precise
knowledge thatthey entelted the land-.O'f another ,with the sble- ir}tent to disturb a site that -
they knew was an archa‘edlogic_al res..ource. Statutory construction using the words
“tzvillﬁtlly, kht)Wingly or maliciously” only modify etit’ering the lands of another. These

adverbs in the statute do not require knowledge of the archeological resource.

Beth the Cotirt of Apbeals atld the Fourth Circuit have previously add'ressed. this
issue and answered the question of -whether “knowiltgly"’ applies to all tletails of a
statute after the verb. State v. Miles 805 S.E. Qd 204 (Ct.App. 2017), Utiited States v.
Jones, 471 F. 3d 535 (4th Cir. 2006) The answer is clearly no’. The intent adverb only
modifies the following Verb For example in lees a defendant only needs to know that
he is transportmg drugs, but does not need to know the actual weight of the drugs or that
the drug is oxycodone. Slm_llarly_, in Jones, a defendant can be found guilty of sex -
trafﬁckiﬁg of minors if he kndws that he is transporting a person. “Knowingly” does not
extend beyond the verb aﬁd apply te;the defendant knowmg the victim is under eighteen
years of age. Based upon Miles and ‘J.ones, supra., a reasonable plain language reading
of the statute does not require that persons know that the site which they at‘e distur‘bing is |
a historic or .prehistofic fsite'ﬁ or that it is an archaeological resource. What they- must

know is that they are excavating and disturbing something on the lands of another.



The card-inqi rule of statutory construction is to ascertain and effectuate the
legislature's _inteﬂt. State v. Smith, 330 S.C. 237,498 S.E.2d 648 (Ct.App.1998). In
construing a stgtute, words ﬁmst-be given their plaih and ovrdin;'iry‘ meaning, without.
resort to subtle or forced coﬁétruétibn to limit or expan‘d thé statute's-dperétioﬁ; Id1fa
. statute's langua;ge 18 plain and ﬁnambiguous, and cor'l-veys. a clear and definite 'meahing,
there is no occasion for employ_i'né> rules of statqfory iﬁtérpretation, and this court has no
right to look for or impose another meaning. /d. Where a statute is complete and
unambiguous, legislative intent'- must. be detérmined from the plain language of the
sfatute. Id Thé statute’s tex_t»'»‘bmust be _const'rued in context and in light of the intendéd
purpose of the statﬁte ina méﬁner which haﬂlmonizes‘with .‘its subject mattér and e_lccords |

with its general purpo.se.l" Cabiness v. Town of James I‘sland, 393 8.C. 176, 192,712
| S.E.2d 416, 425 (2011) (citatién and internal qubtétions omitted). “The primary rule of
statutory construction is that the Court must ascertain the intention of the legi;lamre.”
Coopef v, Moore, 351 S.C. 207, 212, 569 S.E‘.2d‘3'30, 332 (2002)‘. ““In ascertaining the
intent‘ of thé legiéla£me, a cqurt s_hould notkfc)cus‘on any single section or provision but
should consider 4thAe lgngﬁage of the statute és a whole.” Mid-State Auto Auction of
Lexington; - Inc. v. Altman, 324 S.C. 65; 69,v 476 S_.E.2d 690, 692 (1996). ‘_‘S‘u.btl.e or
forced construction of statutory §vords_ for the purpo.sé ‘of expaﬁding a staﬁlte's operation
is prohibited.” TNS Mills, Inc. v..S. C. Dép't‘ of Revenue, 331 S.C. 611, 624, 503 S.E.2d

471, 478 (1998).

The " Circuit Court’s Order erroneously insists that “willfully, knowingly or
'maliciously” Irjlust“apply‘ to other aspects of the statute beyond “entering th¢ lands of

another.” This contention becdmes absurd when the Court makes the claim that the
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person Viqlating tilis statute ;’mﬁst 'havle" priof knbwledge that thé thiﬁg béing disturbed is
an ‘archeélpgical resource. The conétructidn of the' statute by the Circuit Court, which
required advance knowledge that artifacts such as the Compty Bridge Abutments were
archaeological resources, does nbt comport vwi.th thelrules of stétutory construcfion or
interpretation’ﬁjr case law. On ifs fabé, the statute does not require tha_f onie have advance
knciwlecige that a site is an aréhaeological resource or that one’s actions must necessarily
be rﬁalibious. When the Couﬁ ué_ed he térmé “knowingly, willfully, and"‘malic'iously”‘as
modifying the words “a historic site"" or “fér the; purpose of,” fhé result is nOnsénsical.
“Willfully, 'knowingiy, and maliciously”-enly make sense in modifying a verb such as
| “erﬁe‘r” and “éxcévate.;’ Undér the rules of gra.thmai, a persbh' caﬁ V\}illﬁally excavate
“without knowing what t-h‘ey-_aré excavatiﬁg. Such activity often 6ccu_rs in discovery of

buried antiquities.

The word “discovering;’ 1n the secénd paﬁ of tﬁe stat_ute demonstrates the flaw in
the Circuit. Court’s apparénf reasoning. The statuté plaées liabillityAAoril one who
“willfully, knowingly, or maliciously enters the lands of another...and disturb or
excavate a prehistoric site vfor' the pﬁrpose of diécovéring...an archaeological resource.”
One cannot discover sofnething if thej alr‘eeidy.have knowledgé of 'it. The Circuit

Court’s Order makes no sense when its interpretation is read literally.

- The second part of the s:tatute has is its own separate' requiremént .of mens rea in
“for the purpose of.” This méns req requirement rn;odiﬁes a list of verbs that follows. .
" “For the purpose of _'movi,ngr an afcﬁeéldgical fesourcc” isj very different from
“knowingly movmg an archéologiéal resource that is known to the ‘defer-ldant.” An

. object can be purposefully moved without knbwledge of details and specifications of the ‘
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object itself. The statutory language can apply without any modification to a situation

where a historical resource is merely moved because it is in someone’s way.

The South Cafolina Legislature has 'beén very specific in other criminal statutes
applying mens rea when it intends facts beyond the verb to be modified with the same
mens rea. Examples include statutes prohibiting attacking a law enforcement officer and

. transporting stolen timber.

It is unlawful for a person to knowingly and willfully ... assault,

beat, or wound an officer when the person is resisting an arrest -
I being made by one whom the person knows or reasonably

should know is a law enforcement officer, whether under process
~ornot. S.C.Code Ann. § 16-9-320(B). (emphasis added)

.and '

It is unlawful for a person to knowingly and willfully transport
forest products if the person knows that the forest products have
been cut, removed, obtained, or acquired from the property of a
landowner in violation of the provisions of this subsection.
S.C.Code Ann. § 16-11-580(A)(4). (emphasis added)

The Circuit C(;urt’s Order is based on faﬁlty Iogic,that has been rejected by

courts. The 4™ Circuit rejected this same argument in a case involving sex trafficking of

{

minors. The defendant: argl'le'd‘l that “knowingly” applied beyond transporting to

knowledge of the age of the person transported. The 4t Cirduit held:

[Clonstruction of the statute demonstrates that it does not require
proof of the defendant's knowledge of the victim's minority. It is
clear from the grammatical structure of [18 U.S.C.] § 2423(a) that
the adverb “knowingly” modifies the verb "transports." Adverbs
generally modify verbs, and the thought that they would typically
modify the infinite hereafters of statutory sentences would cause
grammarians to recoil. We see nothing on the face of this statute
to suggest that the modifying force of "knowingly” extends
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beyond the verb to other components of the offense. United States
v. Jones , 471 F.3d 535, 538 (4th Cir. 2006) (brackets added)

Similarly, Southi Carolina Courts have found that a person only know that he is
transporting something illegal, and -‘knowingly’ does not extend beyond the verb
‘transpofting’ to the exact type of drug and the quantity'of drug being transported. State

v. Miles 805 S.E.2d 204 (Ct.App., 2017)

" Defendants knew ﬂ}at they were Qutside of the easerAnent,‘. and being outside of |
the - easement. was done Vélmﬁtaﬁly and with intent; Defendénts 'knew'th.at they were
excavatill'g, and excavating ‘was done veluntarily, and with infent.l Moving bridgev
' abutme-nfs ont of the way of an access: read was intentional end allegedly necessary for
the Defendants to build a_' road through the bridge abutmentsl. Mbving these stone *
structures nvas nd accident. Using the statutory construction applied to other similar
statutes, Defendants had to have aetual or constructive kﬁoWledge tha't'-they were outside
of the easement. Defetnd-a'nts had to know that 'tney were ,excav;ltting- or infended to
.excavate, ,Whjch with a trackhoe, was ob;/ious. Contrary to the Court’s finding, the
material facts in the Vrecorld -strongly dernonstrate that these element‘-s Were met, thus

Summary Judgmentwaé improper.

B. Willfulness is Established by the Defendants Conduct

Here, Wlllfulness is estabhshed by the Defendants’ admltted and undlsputed
failure to obtain any perm1ts for their land dlsturbmg activity. Had they obtamed
permits, they would have been requlred to conduct a cultural resources survey. As
demonstrated in Section III hereln -a 31mp1e internet search. would have revealed the

pres‘encé of the historic bridge ‘abutments.. The proper procedure after ‘checking a public "
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database wquld be to foliow up by c};htaéting the Office of the State: Archaeologist to
detérr'ni_r'l'e th.e'nature.of the site inciicated' oﬁ ;che online mapping.. The Defendants cannot
be willfully blind to such requiremehts. South Carolina Cou}ts .have held that willful
activity "does not mean that the- party knows that their éction is illegal, only that the;y -
wére aware of whét;they:'wer'e doing; v“éonduét is willful within the meaning of SC
Code Ann. § 35—1—568 if';the perébn acts intentionally, fhat is, hé is aware of what he is
doing. “Willful meaﬂs only that the person"s conduct was intentional, not that his state
of mind was evil’ or that"he intended to yiole;te....” the st_atute’.._State v. Sterling, 396 S.C.
.599, 616,723 S.E. 2d 176, 184, 185 (S.C. 2‘()12)" | |

While the term “willful” is not defined in S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780, willful
- has Been deﬁned‘in common law to mean intentional. Reeves . Clarolina Founa-’ry. &
Machine Works, 194 SC 403, 9 S.E_.V2df91‘9/, 921 (S.C. 194,()),>“Cumm_ings v. McCoy, 192
S.C. 469;' 7 S.E.-2d 222 (1940). .A nﬁinber of South Carolina statutes have al_sq
interpreted willful to fméan, “the person acts intentionally, that he is aware of whaf he ‘is.
doing.»Willfulnéss déés not réquire the. fersén- to act with an evil rﬁdti,ve or with the
intent .or knowledge ti‘lat.the léw.‘..is-being Vibléted.” State v, Sterling, 396. S.C. 599,
| .614, 723 SE. 2d 176, 184 (_S.C. 2012) In Sterling, the Court found that “Knowlédge or
intent that his conduct violated the securities law ié not required...” Id. In reviewing
~ liability undér thé South Carolina Unfair 'vTrade;Practices Act, willful is deﬁnéd as
“when a party knew or -should ilave khown'fthat i]is condiict was a violation of [thé
‘UTPA].” S].C. Codé Ann. § 39-5-140 (d).: If ‘a person of ordinary prudence who was
engaged in tradé or cbmmerce could_haﬁze _ascertai_ned th:at‘ his- conduct .Vioiated the

UTPA, such conduct is willful within the‘meaning of the statute. Wright v. Croft, 373
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S.C. 1,23-24, 640 S.E. 2d 486 (Ct. App. 2006), Maybank v. BB&T, 416 S.C. 541,578

787 S.E. 2d 498, 517 (5.C. 2015)

While S.C. éode Ann. § 16-11-786 does not define the termrwillfulnessw, in the
context of cfiminal statutes governing sé'cufities laws‘,r Sduth Carolina Coﬁrts have held -
that conduct is wiilful if a defendant “should have known” that his conduct was illegal
based upon due diligence. This Court may édopt this deﬁniﬁon,‘ or at a rﬁinimum the

common law standard.

At common law, the term "willful" connotes a determination to -
exercise one's own will in spite of and in defiance of the law.
“State v.  Alexander, - 48 -S.CL. . (14 Rich) 247
(1867). Conduct committed with a deliberate intention under such
circumstances that a person of ordinary prudence would be
conscious of it as an invasion of another's - rights is
"willful." Rogers v. Florence Printing Co., 233 S.C. 567, 106
S.E.2d 258 (1958). The intent to violate the law or another's rights
may. be proved by circumstantial evidence. Cf., State v. Carroll,
277 S.C. 306,286 S.E.2d 382 (1982). '

Conduct has been defined as willful if a defendant should have known that the
conduct was illegal based upon ordinary due 'diligence. The Nest Egg case describes both
the common law and statutory concepts of willfulness under the South Carolina Unfair

Trade Practices Act as: ,

Ordinarily, the word "willful" as used in a statute has the same.

meaning as it has at common law. Reeves v. Carolina Foundry &

Machine Works, 194 S.C. 403,9 S.E:2d 919 (1940). Accordingly,

Nest Egg contends that the circuit court should have applied the

common law definition of willfulness to the facts of this case. In

view of the plain language of the Unfair Trade Practices Act,
. however, we are unable to sustain this contention.

Section 39-5-110(c) states: .-

For the purposes of this section, a willful violation occurs when
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the party committing the violation knew or should have known
that his conduct was a violation of § 39-5-20.

We hold that this definition creates a statutory standard
of willfulness different from the common law standard. For
purposes of Section 39-5-110, conductis "willful" if - the
defendant "should have known" it violates Section 39-5-20. The
standard is not- one of actual knowledge but of constructive
knowledge. If, in the exercise of due diligence, a person of
ordinary prudence engaged in trade or commerce could have
ascertained that his conduct violates the Act, then such conduct is
"willful" within the meaning of the statute.

Applying this standard of willfulness to the facts of the case, we
think it is clear the defendants' violation of Section 39-5-20 was
"willful." A person who exercised due diligence to ascertain
whether the Nest Egg membership [290 S.C. 129] program
violates the law in South Carolina would have no doubt that it is a
prohibited pyramid plan...Since Section 39-5-30.declares such
devices or plans a violation, per se, of Section 39-5-20, any
person of ordinary understanding would know the Nest Egg
.program is unlawful. We, therefore, reject the defendants'
contention that, as a matter of law, they were not gullty of a

"willful" violation of the statute. '

State ex rel. Medlock v. Nest Egg Soc. Today, Inc., 348 S.E.2d
- 381,383-384,290 S.C. 124, 128 (Ct.App. 1986)

~ In this cese, willfulness is demonstrated by_working outside of the easement
when NAPM and the City knew or should have known that they did not have a right to
distﬁrb’the Plaintiffs’ properties outside of the easement. Willﬁﬂness is 'derﬁonsﬁated-by
failing to perform a eultural resources’ stedy. The Defendants’ acts were intentior_lal, as
they had actuel knowledge of the dimensions of .the easement as evidenced in the
preconstruction meeting minutes. (-R.' p. 70) In spite of such knowledge, they-
intentionally exceeded the bounds of the easement and destroyed the Compty Bridge
Abutments Wlllfulness is further exhibited by the undlsputed failure of the City or the

other Defendants to obtain or seek to obtain any requ1red perrmts for the1r intended
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activity. Willfulness is .further" demonstfated by thf: failure to obtain peﬁnits, which was
an intentional éct. In the budget for the prdposéd road was a line item for permitting. (R.
p. 72, R. pp. 214-216, 220, R. p- 349, lines '16-18) Had they obtained environmental
bermits such aé a Section 404 Permit fvrom> the US Army Corps of Ehginéers for\ their
activity, they would have beeﬁ yequired to ‘conduct a cultural resources survey which,
unde'r.normal due diligence, would havé‘discdvéred the existence of the historical bridge
‘abutrr'lents on the Plaiﬁtiffs’ pro’perties; 33 USC § @‘34‘4,‘33 CFR § 320,4('21‘), 33CFR §
320.4 te), 33 CFR § 320.4()(4). Aﬁef t‘h.e' destruc'fion of the bridge abutments by
NAPM,. thé'Cdfps of Engi.neersvas‘c'ver.tained that the ’City and VNAPM had violated -

Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.’ (R. pp..237, 579-583)
C. Khowing is also established by The Defendants" Conduct

In addition to the willful coﬁduct in which the Defendants NAPlMiand the City of
Colu_mb.iar knew or should have know.n'that the'standing stones were historié structures
and that the loc‘ationk Was‘ an archaeologicél resource, the‘Defendants also had prior
knowledge of the existence of the fifteen-foot e‘asement fhat was memorialized in the
September 16, 2014 cbnétruction mémorandum. R. p. 70) .Acc;)rdingly, the_y knew or
should have known that they had ﬂo legal right to operate Qhefe they were outside of the

easement. -

The correct statutory intgrpretatioh of S.C. Cod'e_ Ann. § 16-1 1-780(C) is that the
Defendants had to willfully enter the land of another. The De;fendanté knewth?t they .

entered_'the land of another. This is evidenced by the deposition of Gene Pierce, P.E. Mr.

"1 The enforcement action is currently ongoing.
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Pierce testiﬁedv. that thepe_r‘s,onnel on site knew they ,had an \ease_m.ent‘, it was 15 feet
wide, and that it 'Was"b'ei‘n'g exceeded. .
_..Q: Was there vany - do yon recaﬂ any discussion of an easement prior to,
. prior to the cornmencement of the clearing work or the_grading work?
A: Yes.
Q Tell me about that diseussion o
' A We knew we had one. The plan that we found stated that it was 15
: feet wide. - - : . : .
(R.S.p. 2)

Q So you beheve that everybody out there knew that that easement was be1ng
- exceeded when 1t -- When that road was being bu1lt'? :

Ms WOOTEN: Object to the form.
MR GOTTSCHALL Object to the form

A:l thmk we were aware that the easement was. be1ng exceeded
(Rp7711nes28Rp218) .' .'

o .81m11ar1y, Mlchael Sheu P. E , an englneer w1th the Defendant City of Columbla
further testlﬁed that it was known to the Defendants that the easement had been
exceeded. - o | | .

| Q _Uh—hu_h.‘ Was the cleariné w1der than the 15-foot easement?
: ”.A:’Yes. ’ | |

i Q You hnow ahout how --’ho‘w 'much wider?i

ATt yaried. It goesdp‘ stope and down slope.

(R. p. 80, lines 2.1-25) S

Q So is it your test1mony today that you beheve it was acceptable to go outsrde Co-

the easement during this work?
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A: In certain physical conditions it's 1nev1table that it will go out51de the
* easements. It's a small amount that's why we do the repair work. :
(RS.p.4).

'Q: Did the City have the Jandowners permission to operate' outside the easement?
A: No specific permission. No.

Q: But you believe that the City had a right to dperate outeide the easement?

A: I believe it did operate outside the easement.

(R. p. 81, lines 1-18, R. p. 217)

Mr. Shue testified that City’s on-site inspector Alan Cockrill had also noted that
the easement was exceeded:

Q: Well, let me just re-phrase it. Was anybody bn site to ensure that work was
being done within the boundaries of the easement?

'A: Alan was on site and did note that it was outside the 15-foot easement for the
- clearing. Since that's a temporary operation -- that sometimes happens on
jobs espec1ally in overgrown terrain that happens

(R. S. pp. 3-4)
‘Although NAPM was operating the earth moving equipment, it is undisputed that Shue
and Cockrill of the City and Pierce were present at times and were aware that the

‘easement was being exceeded.

In addition, priofto the"destruction of the Compty Abutment on the lands of Dr.
James Coleman the NAPM equipment operator and andther employee were speciﬁcally
: told by Dr. Coleman not to. dlsturb the abutment and that it was a historical structure. In
splte of such warnings, NAPM proceeded to topple and destroy the historic abutrnent

(R. pp. 65-66, 85-86, 574)
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The aforementioned testimony was before the Couft, but these material facts
were ignored in the Qrder; (R. p. 349," lines 4-22) In the case of a person convicted for

issuing fictitious dr_i.ver"s licenses .under S.C. Code Ann. § 56-1-515 (1), the Supreme -

Court construed a violation of the statute occurs “if knowingly done” and which is

whether the defendant “knew or should ‘have known” that the information prov1ded to

| issue the hcense was ﬁctltlous State V. Taylor 355 S C 392, 395 585 S. E. 2d 303 (S C.

$2003)

The actions and edﬁ_duet of NAPM and the City“ were kneWing, and there was a
sufficient .issue of fact before the Court that it should not have granted Summary

Judgment to NAPM and the City.

D. Legislative intent is established by the testimony of the South Carolina
State Archaeologlst

In addition to the aforementioned authorities regarding statlitory_interpretation
and the context of what makes grammatical sense, the testimony of the State
Archeologlst regardmg a statute for Wthh he has respon51b1hty and over51ght prov1des_

guldance regardlng the leg1slat1ve 1ntent In his deposmon Dr. Leader testified:

Q. Do you have an opinjon as to whether a party that willfully entered
someone else's land has to know that an object that they might
~ impact would be an archaeological structure --

MR. KENDALL: Object to the form.
MS. WOOTEN: Object to the form.
MR STEWART: Same objection.
BY MR. HODGE:

Q.- To be liable under this act?
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A. Given the discussion that occurred at--with the folks at the legislature
_when they were putting the act together, and the specific case which
kicked the whole thing off, the answer is no.

All they have to do or have done was caused the damage. They do
not have to know that the hill they were going up and down was a
mound. They do.not have to know that the thing was a burial, they
simply have  had to cause - the damage.
(R. p. 66, R. pp. 87-88, lines 13-25, 1-5) '

In contrast to the testimony of the State Archaeologist, thé Order incorrecﬂy
divined apparent 'legiéléti:;e intént on page.'eight vﬁtho_ut any supporting evid_enbe. There
~ are no facts or authoritig:s cited in the Order iﬁ which the Circuit Court coul& reasonab‘ly
ascertain any legislative iﬁtgn_t_. The Circuit Court’s claim of législative intent without
supporting fécts o.r. evidence i§ tantamoﬁnt to s_peéulation. In contrast, in its
memo.randum— and at oral arglirnent, the 'Plaintiffs cited the testimoﬁy of the South
Cafolina lState Archaeologist, who testified that he had worked with the LégislatureAin'
the drafting of S.C. Code Ann. § 16-1 1-786 (C). The tcstimoﬁy of the State Archaeologist :
speaks closer to the actualvint'ent of theLegislatﬁre than the uﬁsuppoﬁed claim of intent

enumerated by the Court in its Order.

The Office of the Sﬁate nArcI‘lateogiist'is charged by law with responsibility for
and bversight of the hisvtoricalvand é.rchaeological artifacts aﬁd resources.withvir'l the State
of Soutﬁ Carolina. S.C. Code Ann. § 60-13-210. The State Archaeologist is élso, in ba.rt,
responsible for the administration of S.C. Code Ann. § 16-1 1,-780. The interpretation of
this statute by the State Archaeologi_st is afforded deference as a matter of law. A“‘Thel
construction of a statute by the égéncy,ch_arged with its administration will be accorded -
the most respectfui cohsi‘der'ationband will not be overruled absent compelling reasons.”

Brownv. S.C. Dep't of Health & Envil. Control, 348 S,C. 507, 515, 560 S.E.2d 410, 414
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(2002) (quotihg Dunton v. S C Bd. of Examiners in Opton1etry, 291 S.C. 221, 223, 353 ‘
S.E.2d 132, 133‘V (1987)). “The construction of a statute by the agency charged with its
' adrninistration‘wilf be“ aecorded the: most respectful 'eonsideration and will not be
overruled absent compelhng reasons. * Qakwood Landf 1, Inc V. DHEC 671 S.E. 2d

646, 653 381 SC 120 (Ct App 2009).

E. The purpose of the Defendants’ excavation was to move the standmg
stones of the Compty Brldge Abutments for their road construction
project. - :

The area excavated by the Defendants was an archeological site pursuant to the
'testimony of the South Carolina State Arehaeologist. (See Arguments III and IV herein)
The Defendants excavatlon was for the purpose of moving the standmg stones that were

part of the archeologlcal resource out of the way for road construct1on (R. p 70)

‘fF or the pnrpe'Se \of_’ does not convey a‘required meﬁs rea that the Defendants
know that they are rnoying an archaeological resource. The Defendants in this case only
need have the purpose of moying the object. The Defendants had the purpose of gettingv
these structures out of the way of their road. The statute does not require that the
Defendants -know What the structures were. The Court erroneously cont/eyed the
requirement that a person must have the sole purpose. of harming an archaeological
resource is not ‘contained in the Ialain language of the-Legislature. (See Afgmnent_V,
‘below) The statue siniplyt requires that the persontknows hee:rshe is “ent‘ering, the land of
another, and while on that land excavates an archaeelogieal resburce for the purpose of
moving, removvi:ng‘,' or attempting to rernove an archaeological resource. That isex_actly
- what occurred nere: OtherWise; claiming ignorance of an atchaeological resource would

always be exculpatory, and the statute would be ineffective and pointless. Those seeking
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to discover archaeological resources would be impossible to convict, because they do
not know of the existence of an archaeological resource if they are attempting to

discover one.

In the case at h_and, the Defendants ihtehded to bufrld a road that extended outside

" of the 15-foot easement. It is clear that the Defendants knew they were limited to a' 15-
foot easement frorn meeting minutes and ‘deposition testimony. R. p 70, R.p. 77-82, R.
p- 216-217) It is also clear that they knew they exceeded the easement (R p. 77- 82 R.
.p 216- 217) They knowingly entered the lands of” another (R p. 81 lines 1 6) The
Defendants d1d in fact excavate to build a road; and they excavated the Plaintiffs’ land :
w1th the purpose of removing rock structures to make way for the road We know from -
depos1tron testimony of the State Archaeologlst that those rock structures were in fact

- archaeological resources. (R. p.73, R. p- 74, lines 5-21, R. p.'442:200-201, lines 13-15, -

1-20)

The . Circuit Court erred in 1nterpret1ng the statite. Under the correct
1nterpretat10n the Defendants w1llfully and knowmgly entered the lands of another the
Defendants excavated an archaeologlcal srte, and a purpose of that excavation was to
remove rock that was in fact an archaeologica\l resource. For the purpose .of reviewing

] .

the Order of the Circuit Court, there is a dispute of material fact that is sufficient to

reverse the Circuit Court’s grant of Summary Judgment to NAPM and the City.

The Defendants clearly knew'that they were exceeding a 15-foot easement and
were entering the. lands of another. (R. pp. 70, 77-82, 216-217) The Defendants

excavated and disturbed an archaeological site.” The purpose of excavating the
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archaedlogical site was to move it out of the way of their road. For these reasons, there
is a dispute of material fact as to whether Defendants violated S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-

780(C), and the archaeological'caliSes of action should not have been dismissed.

I. EVEN IF THE COURT OF APPEALS DETERMINES THAT THE
CIRCUIT COURT’S INTERPRETATIONS ARE PERMISSIBLE, THE
DEFENDANTS ARE STILL LIABLE THROUGH ACTUAL AND

CONSTRUCTIVE KNOWLEDGE OF THE EXISTENCE OF

HISTORICAL AND ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES ON
PLAINTIF FS’ PROPERTIES

When read in_‘acc'or'dance with' the rules of statutory construction and existing’ .

~ case law cited herein, S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 (C) does not require that a party know

in advénce that a site. which is disturbed is an archéeological resource. While a party
committing the acts that are unlawful under S.C. Code Ann. § 16- 11 780 (C) may know
that he is dlsturbmg an archaeolog1cal resource, ., such knowledge is not a prerequls1te for
habxhty under the statute.‘Llablhty may apply to situations where ‘that party “willfully,

knowingly, or maliciously” enters the lands of another with or without knowledge that -

the site that is excavated is a historic or prehistoric site containing an archaeological

resource. .Uhder the common law, coﬁducf that is willﬁJIV has been recognized by South
Carolina Courts to mean “intentional.”» Reeves, supra. 921. Ina 'statufory cOnteXt,
willfui co\n.duc_t' has bc;én _e)ifenci'ed' to actual " or cons@uétive knoWledge where
defendants “knew or s}}ould have k.I_iOWI}” what they was doing was not permitted. Nest

Egg, supra. 383. -

‘In either-case, the Defendants engaged in land disturbing activities outside of the

easement that resulted in the.vdestruction of the Compty Abutments. Such action was in
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and of itself intentional They intended to operate heavy excavation equipment outside
of the easement either knowmgly or w111fu11y blind to its dlmensmns It is fundamental '
- that the City of Columbla obtained these easements from the P1a1nt1ffs predecessors in
title, and that the Defendant NAPM knew of the d1mens1onsiof the easement from the
preconstrnction meeti_ng. (R. p 70) These Defendants intentionally operated outside of
the easementi They had actualiknowle'dge of the easement, but ignored it. (R. pp. 77-82,
216-217) Had they stayed -within the ,easement, they would not have damaged the
historic Compty Abutments. ‘ o |

It is further undisptlted that none of the befendants' in this case- made any attempt'
to check for Cultilral' resonfces prior toi_entry upon the P_laintiffs’ land. (R p. 62, R. p.
443:205, lines 11—20, R. p. 444:206-2‘07) Dr. Leader testified that had they called his
office or used the ArchSite website, the'presence of the historic bridge abutments t)vould
have been easily found. (R. p. 73, R. p'.'4/43:202-2:03, lines 8-25, 1-13, R. p. 382, lines 1-
- 3) At the hearing on the Defendant NAPM’s Motion for Summary Judginent, a printout
from the ArchSite database was presented to the Couft‘which clearly showed that.the
Plaintiffs’ propei'ties contained historic sites and .archaeoiogical resources. (R.. p. 73) The
failure of the Defendants to conduct any due diligence regarding the potential presence
of h1stor1c sites and archaeologlcal resources was 1ntent10na1 and such action ensured
their willful blindness to what should have been an obv1ous inquiry had they sought
permits or made a cursory review. |

If this Court believes that a person rnust have dprio_ri knowledge that a site is an
| archacological fesource to be liable_lun’der 5.C. Code Ann § 16-11-780(C), then such

: l
knowledge must include actual or constructive knowledge where a party knew or should
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have known that a site was historic and contained archaeolbgical resources. In addition,
a party must not escape liability because of willful acts that include an intentional failure

to pérforrh’ dny due diligence or to obtain proper permits.

: Since the Plaintiff | Jamés Coleman warned NAPM that the abutment on. his
property was a hiétorical structure and to'vaVQid it, NAPM had actual knowledge of the
historical natnre of the site. If NAPM didn’t undérstand Dr. .Co.leman’s> warnihg, tney
' had constructive knowledge that they should have avpidéd the historical site on his

property. | o

Il THE COURT WAS IN ERROR IN CLAIMING THAT ANY
APPLICABLE = GOVERNING, PRESERVATION, OR

’ CONSERVATION AUTHORITIES HAD NOT DESIGNATED THE
- ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES -AS SUCH ON THE
PLAINTIFFS’ PROPERTY. -

The ’épplicability. of S.C. Code Ann § i6-11;780 to the Plaintiffs’ lawsuit
depends upon whether the Plaintiffs’ properties containeci “Archaeological Resources”
as defined in S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-.780 (A)(1). Rather than make‘the requisite
_analysis, the Court_anéepted the Defendant NAPM’s argurnént that there was no genuine
issue of material fact that the érchaenlogical _resources,on"t'he. Plaintiffs’ properties had

not been designated as such by a relevant agency or historic or conservation authority.

The Court efroneously ruled that_ the Compty Bﬁidge :Abutments chgracterized in
the Ordér as .“archaeological resource/a_rchaeological.:j structure(s) had not be¢n
designatéd | as his’tqric by any aioplicablp Aa_nd/or gbveming pre'se'rvation and/or
cconservation authority(ies).” (Rp 9) In its response to NAPM’s Motion for Summary
Judgrn'ent, .tl-le Plaintiffs’ Exhibit C that was presented to the Circuit Court was a screen

shot from the ArchSite website that is maintained By the South Carolina Department of
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Archives and Hisfory in c§ﬁjﬁnption ;Nith the ‘Office of the State Archaeologist. (R. p.
73) The South Carolina Dgﬁartrhént of .Archj\(es and History is an agency of the state
and maintains a Websitcf,, shpo.sc.gov. Had these Defendants' entered t}\leir job logatiori
into the ArchSite query forrha they woul.d have immediately known that jt was the sité bf
historic bridge abutments. The kﬁrst page of the, Website Has a “Quick Links” seét\ion_that |
‘ takes one to the “ArchSite (GIS)” d;i\tzllibase.- Once one clicks on the address of the
Plaintiffs, a polygon _appearé that iAr‘ldic;ites.'t'hat a historic site exists over the Plaiﬁtiffs’
properties. Exhibit C is the ééreenéhét of the identiﬁ.catidn of the bfidge abuﬁnenté. (R
p. 7A3) Archsfte indicates thai there aré bridge abutments adjacent to Castle Road and the
" Broad River on the two proﬁeﬁies o\;\fned by .the Plaintiffs. The pubic détabase identifies
the Plaintiffs’ property at f‘Historic Areas: Broad River Ferry and Bridge Site...Date

of Resource: 1791-1900.” (R. p. 73)

The no/tation referencés tha;t the site is not eligible for the National Register of
Historic Places but “furfher e‘\l/alﬁation is required."_’ A copy of this polygon was
'p_resente‘d to the Circuit Cqurt as part of ‘the Plaintiffs’ Memorandum in Opposition to
NAPM’s Motion for Summary Judgment. The historic determination by the Departrhent
of Aréhives ‘and History was presénted to t'he’Court at oral argument. (R. pp. 372-374,

lines 16-25, 1-25, 1-21)

In additio_n to the AréhSite exhibit, in dépbsiﬁon, Dr_. .'anathan Leader, South
Carolina State Archaeplogist, testified regarding the documentation of these bridge
abutments in the recqrds of the SC Departmént of Ar-chives and History and 1n the S(%uth
Carolina Institute Nof Archaeology and .Anthropolégy. In his deposition, Dr. Leader

testified:



Q. Okay. Okay. You earlier testified that the bridge abutment
has been determined to be a historical site pursuant to the
State ﬁle --the State site files, correct?
. , 5
A.  Pursuant to the Office of the State Archaeolog1st itisa
historic site.
Okay. When — when was that determined?

A. Basically when we first got to it. It’s been considered a
historic site since day one.

Would that have b_een iri 2007?

A. Yeah. As soon as it was found on private property, it < was '
protected -- we thought or believed at that time. And since
it was a historic structure with materials demonstrating

from a historic period, we considered it to be a historic site

. from that time period on private property.
(R. p. 64, R. p. 74, lines 5-21, R. p. 435:173, lines 5-21)

The Court apparently accepted NAPM’s misrepresentation of the State
Archaeologist"s testimony. NAPM 1ncorrect1y clalmed that Dr. Leader had not done any |
independent research or other acti\}ity vthat' Wohld'result m anyl gOVerning authority
fssuing a hictoric designation for the Plaintiffs’ properties. It further claims that Dr.
Leader"s opinions are based upon an assumption that the location is a historical site. (R.
p '56) The record does not suoport NAPM’S assertions, which the Court erroneously

acceptedthcre' genuine issues of material fact contradict such statements.

_- First, Dr. Leader_ made 'it very cl'ear"that he made six site Visité to the Plaintiffs”

properties. (R. p. 402:39,. lines 5-14) He found pottery shards that are both prehistoric
| and historic. The location of the historic bridge abutments have been correlated based
upon historical documents as being located on the Plaintiffs’ properties. (R. p. 406:56-

57, lines 1625.,'1 .-"5, R. p. 5.62-574) Dr.Leader had identified the formerly standing stones
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on-site as bridge abutments (R. p. 442:200-20‘1, lines 13-25, 1-15). In his deposition on

February 16, 2018, Dr. Leader was asked:: ‘

"'Q: Just to summarizékagain ‘why y01i believe that the lo¢atioh
identified in Exhibits 24 and 25 [on the Plaintiffs’
property] is an archaeological site?

A: 1 believe that the area is an archaeological site based on
the identification of artifacts on the site that are prehistoric -
and historic in nature. In both cases primarily pottery plus
additional - information dealing with the placement of

~bridge abutments which are based on historical
~documents, maps, and GIS and remnants of what I have,
' identified as bridge abutments

(R. p. 550:157, line 12-22)

~ Q: What is the 51gmﬁcance of this site to the Native American
artifacts that you have apparently identified?

A: Well, I think it’s significant. You’re deahng with at least in
this location is a Deptford site which is early Woodland
which is that point where people were no longer hunter,
fishers, foragers, but.moved to small hamlets, horticulture

 and sedentary life. So-what you're talking about is the

" potential for a Native American hamlet in the area. It

~ could be other things there as well. And basically,

‘ ‘Columbia. is a good place to live and people have been
living there for millennia is what it comes down to. So it
is of importance.

The other thing to.keep in mind especially when it comes
"to Woodland period hamlets and the rest, and not
infrequently the burials are in the buildings themselves.
So potentially there were burials in the area. I didn't-see
any burials, but as an anthropologist, specifically as an
- archaeologist, it will be something that I would have on

my tick off sheet to keep track of.

.Q. Moving on to Mr. Brmkman s work do you have any
reason to doubt the conclusions that Mr. Brinkman came -
- up regarding those abutments named John Compty s
Bridges?
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A. No. I think that he [David Brinkman] has done a .
~ tremendous amount of work. I think that his GIS work is
very, very good. My only concern is it's a
multicomponent site.  There are other components need to
be dealt with. . - '

Q. Okay. Does the professionaliarchaeological community in
South Carolina accept Mr. Brinkman's work?

A. They have, yes:.

(R.p. 551: 159-161, 1i_nes_20-25, 1-25, 1-4)

Q. Okay. In yoﬁr opinion, has that assessment been
definitively determined, that these remains are, in fact,
part of the first bridge by John Compty?

" A. Given the location of the abutment on the Brinkman
property, given the overlay of the maps, which I have yet
to see, but the maps showing the location in line going
across, given the information provided me to the materials
inside -- interior to the river itself in line going across, my
professional assessment is that they are indeed part and -
parcel of a bridge, okay, of the appropriate time period.

(R. p. 406:56, lines 1-13)

The Office of State Archaeologist is part of the South Carplina Institute of Archaeo'log'y,A
~ an agency of the State of South Carolina pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 60-13-210.
Contrary to' the ﬁndingé of :the vCourt,' these are goyerning authoritie_s, afld the South
Carolina Department of Archives and History did in fact recognize the historical
significance of the Native American artifacts and the Compty Bridge Abutments. on the ’

Plaintiffs’ properties.

The Court’s basis for its erroneous finding that the site had not been designated

as historical as argued by NAPM was based upon a letter dated-in 2008 to the Plaintiff
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Davrd Brinkman stating that at that time, the srte was not eligible for inchlsion onto the.
Nat10na1 Reglster of Historic. Places because additional’ evaluatlon needed to be done.
(R p. 58- 59) Mr. Andrew W Chandler an employee of the SC Department of Archives.
and Hlstory,‘ wrote the letter to .Plamtlff Dav1d Brinkman. While the letter described Mr.
Brinkman’_s work as v“impressi\./e,’.’ the _desigrlation was left open for future review and

evaluation.

- At the time that Mr.‘ Brinkr’narx,sought the National Register designation, he
believed that the b_-ridge. abutmerrts might:‘be from a br'idge that Gerreral" Shermarr used to
enter Colum_bia duﬁng the latter part of the Civil War. Based upon research that Mr.
Brinkman performed after receipt of the .letter from Mr. Chandler, he determmed that the
bridge abutments were actually about 70 years older and. corresponded to the site of the
first br1dge over the Broad R1ver in the Mldlands Mr. Brinkman- deterrmned that these
were abutments that were bullt by John Compty, a French Engmeer in the 1790s. In his
testimony, Dr. Leader testified that the professmnal archaeologlcal community in South
Carolina has accepted Mr. Brinkman’s finding that the bridge abut'ments are the Compty
Bridge Abhtments from the 179os. (R. p. 551:159-161, lines 20-25, 1-25, 1-4) As State
| Archaeologlst he further testified that his agency accepts Mr. Brmkman s findings as
accurate. (R p. 551:160, 11nes 17- 25) Dr Leader further empha51zed the historical
nature of the bridge abutments by testifying, “I think it is pretty- clear, at least from my
point of view, the historic and cul_turaliresources‘ have been impacted;"’ (R. p. 530:74,
lines 7-9) -

i

. My determlnatlon was that it was a historic abutment from
the approprlate time perlod and that grven the add1t1ona1
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research attached to it, it was likely to be the Compty
bridge abutment.
R. p- 442 200, lines 13- 17)
Itis undrsputed that Mr. Brmkman apphed for Natlonal Reglster de51gnat10n in
2008 and such status was not granted based upon the need for further evaluatron The
Court 1gnored in its Order the obvious de51gnat10n of the site as hrstorlc by the South
Carolina Department of Archives and History as demonstrated in the Archsite database :
and polygon notation. In addition, the Court ignored the plain testimony of the State.
Archaeologist that the abutments were identified archaeological resources that were
covered under S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 et seq.
IV. T HE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN CONCLUDING THAT DESIGNATION
ON THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES WAS A

REQUIREMENT FOR S.C. CODE Ann § 16 11-780 TO BE APPLICABLE TO
THIS CASE. .

S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 does not require that a site be on the National Register
of Historic Places to be an ‘_‘Archae\olo‘gical Resource” as defined in S.C. Code Ann. § 16- |

11-780 (A)(1). This paragraph.de'ﬁnes an'Archaeologieal Resource:

"Archaeological resource" means.all artifacts, relics, burial objects, or
material remains of past human life or activities that are at least one
hundred years old and possess either archaeological or commercial value,
including pieces of pottery, basketry, bottles, weapons, weapon
projectiles, tools, structures or portions of structures, rock paintings, rock
carvmg, intaglios, graves or human skeletal materials.

As a matter of law, nowhere is inclusion in the Nat1ona1 Regrster requrred for S.C. Code .

~ Ann. § 16-11 780 to be apphcable The Court’s reliance on the 2008 letter - from Mr

Chandler to Mr Br1nkman is misplaced. Even though in 2008 the nomination was not
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forthcomirig because further study needed to be done, this letter does not ‘ev_iscera'te the

application of the Statute.

Dr. Leader emphasized that just because the Plaintiffs’ properties were not
deemed to be eligible in 2008 for nomination to the National Register of Historic Places

‘did not disqualify the site from being historically important. Dr. Leader testified that:

“One of the things I’ve stated several times today, and

which I stand on, is you have an archaeological site which

- .is important and which required additional work, okay? So

. “requires evaluation” comes underneath the general rubric

. ~ of additional work...Doesn’t mean it’s not important. The
‘ “not eligible” side of things references undereath the

. criteria specifically to the National, you know, Register,

which is a very specific tool, which does not cover, you

know, reality of most archaeology. »

The National Registry was not designed initially for
archaeology. It was designed for built environments, for
houses and architecture.”

R. p 416:97, lines 21-25, R. p. 417:98, lines 1-14) |

Q. Okay. And just in general terms, can you describe wﬁat
the significance of the John Compty abutments are?

A. Well, the bridges coming into Columbia were the
- lifeblood of ' Columbia. I mean, you had the river,
obviously, and people did take vessels up and down it -
from earliest times, Native Americans through, but having
roads to the interior and Columbia was the interior at that
time -- and having bridges that were available regardless
of whether -- although, given what happened with the
flood, perhaps not -- but the concept of doing that was

instrumental for the -- for the history of Columbia as a

" city.

Had- there not been those bridges in place, Columbia's
growth would have been stunted, the people coming into
Columbia would have then had a serious obstacle. The
history of Columbia would have been quite different.
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So I would put the bridges, any one or all of them, into the
category of being of very serious importance to South
Carolina and.to the history of the State. [emphasis added]
Q. Were the Compty bridge abutments the first bridges --
are the. Compty bndges the very ﬁrst bndges over the

Broad Rlver‘?

A.Yeah. You had ferrles but the Compty bndges were
the first two.

R. p. 442:200-201, lines 18-25, 1-20)

Both the ArchSzte notice by the Department of Archives and Hrstory and Dr. Leader S
testimony demonstrate that the Plaintiffs’ property contamed archaeologlcal resources -
the historic brldge abutments. The contents of the 2008 letter do not.affect the finding
that the Plaintiffs’ property contalns archaeolog1ca1 resources as defined under S.C. Code
Ann. § 16-11-780 (A)(1). Thus, the Court was in error in clalmlng that the brldge
abutments had not been desrgnated as h1stor1c by “governing preservation and/or
conservatiOnauthorities.” (Argument I, above) At oral argument before the Circuit
Court, counsel demonstrated that National Register designation was not a requirement
for coverage under S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780, and that both the Sonth Carolina
Department of Archives and Histdry and the South Carolina State Archaeologist had
declared the Plaintrffs’ properties to be- historic sites that meet the deﬁnition of an
‘Archaeologlcal Resource under the Code (R. pp. 372- -378, 380- 384) In ﬁndmg

~otherwise, the Court’s determlnatlon was clearly erroneous, arbltrary, and capr1c10us

In addition,uthis Court can take judicial notice that the location of the Plaintiffs’

properties is within the “Broad River Historic District,” which is listed on the National
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Register of Historic Places. (R. p. 576-578) In spite- of the 2008 letter that Mr. Brinkman

- received, the location is designated under the National Register of Historic Places as part

of the “Broad River Historie District.”

V. THE COURT’S MISSTATEMENT OF THE LAW IS GROUNDS FOR
REVERSAL

On page elght of the Court s Order grantrng NAPM Summary Judgment it

| clearly misstates and mlsquotes the text of S C. Code Ann § 16-11-780 (C) This error is )

grounds for reversal in and of 1tself The Order states that “In readlng the plain’ language
of S.C. ‘Code Ann. § 16-11_—780 (©), it is clear that the legislature intended this criminal

statute to apply where a person willfully, knb‘wihgly or maliciously enters another’s lands

for the sole purpose of discovering, uncovering, moving, removing or attempting to

remove an archaeologicai resource.” The Order misquotes the applicable statute by

_inserting the erroneous statement that the entry must be “for the sole purpose.” The

. ‘ ‘4 . R : ° N I . .
statute does not require the entry to be “for the sole purpose.” In making this statement,

- the Court is in error for mrsstatmg and mrsapplymg the controlhng statute. Nowhere in

S C.Code Ann § 16- 11 780 (C) does the statute requlre the entry onto the lands of others

to be “for the sole purpose” of drsturbrng an archaeologrcal resource.
The statute premises liability upon three components:

(1) Willfully, knowmgly, or mahclously entering the lands of another,
(2) And disturb or excavate a prehistoric or h1storrc site,

- (3) For the purpose of drscoverrng, uncovering, mov1ng, removing, or attemptmg
to remove and archaeological resource.
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The Order is furthér in erydriwhen it .concludes_ on page 8 that “’...there is no
evidence NAPM entered upon Plaintiffé’ _pfop_erties for the sple purpose of ﬁnding and
removing.} .an ‘ércha"e;ologi:cal resource'..’f’.. Int—m~aking this claim; the Court relied upon a
rilisfeéding of the. statute as discﬁssed 'al;ové; The Court’s rclianc?e‘ on an obvious

misreading of the statute is, as a matter of law, grounds for reversal. State of Ohio v.

Goodwin, 2013 Ohio 4591 (Ohio App, 2013).

Also, the Order on page 8 furtfler,nlisquofes S.C. ’Code‘ Ann. § 16-11-780 (C)
when it s'tate‘s. that “Fﬁrther, NAPM -nei_th_ér A\intenti‘onally, 'mélicioﬁélsf, lofrecklessly
destroyed ény .llisfori‘cal struqture nof éiid NAPM ever kpowingly or fnéiiciou_sl& move or
displace any £ocks allegedly part of é historical structure.” The aforgmentioned statute
does nof use the words “intentional” 'c;r “‘reckless” as the Court apparently believed;
however, S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 © étates that “It is unlawful for a pefson to
willfully, .knox'vingly, or fnaliciousiy 'en‘ter the lands of éﬁother...” This section does not
premise liabilitsr‘ upon “knowingly or maliciously” moving or displaéihg historical

structures.

When read properly, the statute dbes not require that a party know in advance
that a site whicﬁ is disturbgd is an archaeoldgi;:al resoufce. A party committing the acts
that are prohibited by S.C. Code _Ann". § 16;'1 1-780 (C) may know that he ié disturbing an
archaeologiéal resource, but suéh knowiédfge is not requiréd by the statute. Liability may
apply to situations where that palty ‘Fwillfuily, knowingly, or maliciously” enters the
lands of another with or without knowledg¢ thaf the site that is excaV?ted isa ilistoric or

prehistoric site containing an archaeological resource. -
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The Circuit C‘ou‘rt ‘fufther ignored the- testimony of Rlaintiff Dr. James-Coleman
that he 'yvarned two NAPM workers to avoid the historic bridge 'abutments on his
_property prior to their destruction. (R. pp. 574, 85-86) This testimony demonstrates tnat
NAPM was warned and knéw or should have: known that there were archaeological‘
resources on Dr.- Coleman’s propet'ty This evidence, inter alia pres;e‘nted by the
‘Plalntlffs in opposmon to NAPM’s Motlon for Summary Judgment presented genulne

issues of materlal fact that does not support a grant of Summary Judgment to NAPM and

the City of Columbla, \ '

IV. THE COURT WASIN ERROR IN APPLYING THE “UTILITY WORKER
EXCEPTION” IN S.C. CODE Ann. § 16-11-780 TO THE DEFENDANTS. THE
EXCEPTION APPLIES TO WORKERS, NOT CORPORATIONS.

The Circuit Court erred in accepting the Defendants’ arguments that neither -
NAPM nor the City of Columbia were liable for disturbance and destruction of the
Compty Bridge Abutments, because they were exempted pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §
16-1 1-780 X) (3). SpeciﬁCally, the aforementioned statute states that:

(K) Nothing contained in this section shall limit or interfere with:

(3) the lawful acts of a utility worker acting in the scope of and in the
course of his employment

" The plain language readmg of the statute indicates that 1t'app11es to the personal liability
of utility workers who are engaged in and acting within the scope and course of their
employment. Neither NAPI\;I nor' the City are “utility workers” as intended by the
statute. The statute uses th'e pronoun “his,”‘which cannot apply to an entity, butronly to

an aetual person. As a matter of law, the Court’.s interpretation that this part of the
. Archaeological Code shjelds the municipal and“cot-porate Defendants is not conveyed by

the statute. On its face, the so-called ‘futility worker exeeption” applies to individual



‘ -employees who are workmg for a utrlrty company, but it does not grant 1mmumty or. an R 4'
exceptron to liability to- the utllrty, mumcrpahty, or corporatron In ﬁndlng that NAPM' -
and the . Crty are covered by thls exceptron the Court ‘went beyond the scope of the

exceptlon Not only was the Court S 1nterpretat10n that the statute apphed to. entrtres
- other than utrllty workers facrally 1ncorrect 1t was an arbrtrary and caprrcrous decision to -

- extend the apphcatlon of the statue to NAPM and the Crty, as nerther are “utrhty .
workers.” NAPM is'a corpora_tro_n that‘ was .retamedas a subcontra‘c_tor to, perform landf
clearing work-l wrthm an ‘easement 'in advance_of a’ sewer mainten‘ance contract; While |
N this work was "appar‘ently;in‘ furtherance-of a 'planned ,_seweﬂr maintenance project, NAPM

as a corporation is not autil:ity-WOrker as.provided for under the aforementioned statute.

| Presumably, the Legrslature enacted the utrhty worker exceptron” to sh1eld
’ mdrvrdual employees from cnmlnal habllrty for the destructron of archaeologlcal-
resources as long as they were actmg w1th1n the scope 'of therr employment. It did not
extend the protectron of workers who were.actmg in the scope of their dutles to shreld .
~ .corporatrons and mumcrpalrtres Since the statute covers “the lawful acts of a ut111ty
" worker actrng wrthrn the scope ‘of and course of h1s employment 1t »cannot cover -
employees whether they work for contractors lrke NAPM or mumcrpalrtles such as the

. City"of Columbia. It ‘is’plain- and clear'that the exceptio‘n'refers to a, utility WOrker as a

| single person from the use of the pronoun “his.” This\.choice-of pronoun dOes 'not make

grammatlcal sense to apply to the. Crty of Columbra or NAPM and these entrtres are not.
covered. Any other readmg of the statue would be unreasonable “absurd and well

, . beyond the. plarn language in the statute



Even if thé Co_urt were to di_sagfee with the Plaintiffs and find NAPM and the
' City to be “utility workers,” when NAPM'wéﬁt out‘sidév of the easement and destroyed
the Corhpt’y Bridge Abutﬁents, it Was no longgr cngagéd in ;1 léwful act. As a contractor,
NAPM héd no permission to operate outside of the easement. The City had no authority
to allow NAPM -tlo operate outsidé of the easement. ’Thefse operations weré élearly '
beyohd,the scope of the protections of the uiility worker éxception. (R. pp. 75-79, see
79, lines 3-6, -R. pp. 216-217, 244, 348, R. ‘p. 348, lines 2-23) It i; further undisputed that
NAPM was operatiﬁg éutéideof the easement. (R. pp. 79-82, lines 3-6, 21-23, 1-25, 1-7,
R. pp. 407-_408:61-62, lines 22-25, 1) Since NAPM operated outside of tﬁe easement,
] and the City was aWare at the 1ime of NAPM’_S operations that the work was performed
- outside of the easement, the acts of these Defendants were not “lawful acts” as allowed
in S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 (K) (3). In op¢rating outside of the easement, NAPM’S

actions were beyond the scope of its employment.‘

~ CONCLUSION

The Circuit _Court erred in granting Summary Judgrhent to NAPM and the City
of Columbia that the arqhaéological statute, S.C. Code Ann. § 16-11-780 was
.inapplicable in this céée. While Defendants claim. that they did not have actual
knowledge of the archaeological éites_on the ﬁlaintiffs properties, the statute does not
require actual knowledge.' If there is any doubt that the Order of the Circuit Court is
defective, the word f‘discox}ery” in the statute demonstrates that knowiedge is not
.reqﬁired, as one cannot have knowledge of something that they are trying to discover.
Knowledge ié ﬂbt necessary for the plain languagé of the s,tatute. to apply. There only

needs to be intent to enter the land, intent to excavate, and a purpose for moving the
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bridge abutments out of the way. There ére mgterial facts that Defendants should have
known and did in fact know that the property was an archaeologiéal site, because the.
Plaintiff James Coleman informed them. Even if one were to accept the Court’s
incorreét interprefation of the archaeological statute, it would still apply based upon the
actual or constructive knowledge of NAPM and the Clty AThe Court ﬁirther erroneously
_concludéd that designation th the Nationél’ Register of Historic Places ‘was‘ a
requirement for coverage under SC Code Ann. § 16-1'1?780 when the statute contains ﬁo'
such requirement. The "Couft‘aléo »err“ed‘ in holding that the.Defendants‘NAI;M and ;;he
City were immune from liab.ility, since neither is a “utility worker” as reéuired unaer the
statute.

Sufficient evidence wa.ls‘ presented that a dispute of material .fécts exists regarding
the Defendants’ actual or _cor'lstvructiv‘é_.knowledge and intent to exceéd the easement, .
enter the lands of the Plaintiffs without bennission, and excavaté, disturb, move, or_‘
rémove an archaeological resource. Because there is a dispute of material ifacts,
sufnmary judgment was impr}oper.’ |

‘Respectfully. submittéd,

& AsSociates, LLC
B¥Gct Box 25553 (29224)
9367 Two Notch Road
Columbia, South Carolina 29223
(803) 386-1504
johnhodge@johnhodgelaw.com
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